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ITEM NO. 1:

FY 2007 BUDGET (C.c. 06-31 and 06-49)

CHAIR KANE: .. .(gavel). .. We'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee's public hearing for the South Maui District in Kihei. For the record, we have
in attendance - Committee members ... Vice-Chair of the Committee, Mr. Hokama, as
well as Committee members Tavares, Anderson, Mateo, Kane, Molina, Pontanilla and
Carroll.
Good evening, Kihei. Thank you for letting us be with you folks this evening. Tonight
we're here to hear your thoughts regarding the 2007 proposed budget by our Mayor. We
have a sign up area over here for those of you who haven't already signed up. Couple of
ground rules. First, if you have a cell phone or a pager, we'd appreciate if you get that
turned off or to the silent mode. We realize it's raining so if you do have your phone on
because you need it on, if you can please exit the room and take your call outside it'd be
much appreciated. Thank you.
We'll be giving you a total of four minutes. At three minutes we're going to let you
know that you have another minute to conclude. So our staff will be telling you three
minutes and then again at four minutes they'll notify you of that four-minute time. We
will be as polite as possible and asking you to conclude your remarks at the four minute
mark so finish your sentence or your thought. If you continue, we will again interrupt
you and we'll try to be as polite as possible again to ask you again to conclude your
remarks. You're not talking to the crowd, you're talking to the Council so please address
your remarks to the Council.
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The first thing you do is if you can please state your name for the record, and if you do
represent an organization we would like to know that as well. And after your comments
are through, let us know that you're done and hang on for a moment we'll ask if any
Members have questions regarding your testimony. We appreciate that. We have, I
believe, a list of members who signed up. You're going to go ahead and read it for us,
Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Nodded yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, Mr. Chair. Our first testifier is Danny Foreman with his mother,
Cindy, followed by Michael Duberstein .
. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MS. FOREMAN: Okay. My name is Cindy Foreman and I'm a parent and a volunteer at Kihei
School and this is my son, Danny. And we'd like to speak in support of Maui Economic
Development Board and the Economic Literacy Program. Danny, I understand you
participated in a program called "market day" last spring. What did you like most about
market day?
MR. FOREMAN: Buying stuff.
MS. FOREMAN: How did you earn money to buy stuff?
MR. FOREMAN: Making stuff in class and earning a paycheck each week.
MS. FOREMAN: A paycheck? What kind of money did you use?
MR. FOREMAN: Contest money.
MS. FOREMAN: Oh. Did you design the money?
MR. FOREMAN: Nodded no.
MS. FOREMAN: Oh, someone in class. Did you work on your own?
MR. FOREMAN: No.
MS. FOREMAN: You had partners? And what was your business called?
MR. FOREMAN: DSK.
MS. FOREMAN: For Danny, Sheldon and Kenneth. What kind of things did you guys build?
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MR. FOREMAN: Pipe cleaner men, shell turtles and ___ ... (inaudible) .•.
MS. FOREMAN: And where did you get the supplies to make these things?
MR. FOREMAN: School, store or from home.
MS. FOREMAN: Okay. So you had to buy supplies?
MR. FOREMAN: Yes.
MS. FOREMAN: What did you do with the projects once you made them?
MR. FOREMAN: Sold them on market day.
MS. FOREMAN: Okay. What did you learn about running a business? Did you learn about
running a business?
. . (Laughter) ..

MS. FOREMAN: Come on, Danny. Don't worry about them. Talk to these guys? What did
you guys do on market day?
MR. FOREMAN: Sold stuff.
MS. FOREMAN: Who came to buy things?
MR. FOREMAN:
custodians.

Other students, their parents, teachers and the lunch ladies.

MS. FOREMAN: Oh ... not the custodians?
MR. FOREMAN: Nodded no.
MS. FOREMAN: So, did you get to buy things too?
MR. FOREMAN: Yes.
MS. FOREMAN: So it sounds like you learned a lot about economics.
MR. FOREMAN: Yes.
MS. FOREMAN: Okay. Do you think this is a good way to learn about economics?
MR. FOREMAN: Yes.
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MS. FOREMAN: You want to show the Council members your box of things? What you got
there? We have pens to buy, and that's a what a back scratcher. And here's our shell
turtle. Basically, the MEDB Program sponsors a lot of education and training for
teachers. And it gives the teachers new and exciting ways to teach things like economics.
And it's really kind of interesting. I happen to be the Economics professor at Maui
Community College so I've been involved with this program and a lot of the school
teachers have never even taken an economics course. Yet, economics is a required social
studies content area. So it's really good if we can bring in classes to strengthen their
skills in economics and give them exciting ways to teach economics to the children in the
schools. Did you have anything else you wanted to say?
MR. FOREMAN: Nodded no.
MS. FOREMAN: Okay. So I just urge you to support the funding of Maui Economic
Development Board.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for our testifiers? Hearing none. Thank
you very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Michael Dubenstein [sic] followed by Jeannie Mosely.
MR. DUBERSTEIN: It's hard to follow that even for a professional economist like myself.
That was good. Mahalo and aloha, Members of the Council. My name is Michael
Duberstein. I live at 34 Iliwai Loop here in Kihei. And I recently retired after 25 years
as the Director of Research for a major professional union. So now I've got a lot of time
to volunteer, and as you can see I'm a member of KPAT and I also work with the
Hoaloha aina restoring the historic trail by the Kihei boat ramp and now we're stretching
down into Kamaole III for Maui Coastal Land Trust, the KCA, and Pump Don't Dump.
Those organizations clearly represent my self interests. Everyone of them deserve your
full continuing and even greater support. But in addition, I'm concerned about issues
which I characterize as being one's of broader enlightened self-interest.
Who will speak here tonight on behalf of those Maui residents who must work two, three
or more full-time jobs and don't have the opportunity to appear before you? On behalf of
those who don't speak English, on behalf of casual tourists not the residents who are able
to live here for part of the year and on the mainland the rest. And yes, on behalf of the
truly homeless those voices may not be heard but their needs are as great if not greater
than members of groups who come before you every year asking for the same thing.
Finally, I'd like to give you a few specifics. I think if you were to conduct an anonymous
County-wide priority survey, I think dealing with crime would be right at the top. Let's
find a way to keep reducing the number of police personnel shortages. And one answer
could be a program like the one Senator Roz Baker introduced at the State level heavily
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subsidizing housing costs for our police force. But we should not stop there. It should
also extend to other key public jobs - fire fighters, teachers, sanitation workers, etc.
Secondly, you do have the power to pass measures guaranteeing a living wage for every
County resident, and let's start with all public employees. We, as taxpayers, want the
best services. You, our elected leaders, want to provide them. That's a start to attain
both.
Lastly, I also urge you to vastly expand the County's current recycling program so that
every Maui resident has available curbside recycling pick ups and, in addition, you all
should mandate-MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. DUBERSTEIN: --the rising percentage of all County goods expenditures via recycled
products. Mahalo and thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your testimony.
Thank you. Ms. Willenbrink.

Members, any questions? Hearing none.

MS. WILLENBRINK: Jeannie Mosley followed by Andrew Beerer.
MS. MOSELY: Hi. I'm speaking for myself although I, too, am a proud volunteer with Kalama
Park area . . . Kalama Park Action Team whatever it stands for. When the Mayor
recently met with the Kihei Community Association, he said that he was not inclined to
direct County budget funds towards what he calls pocket parks. He said, that he would
focus on regional parks instead. That statement is troublesome to many of us. If he
means by pocket parks, the parks that line our South Maui beaches, I appeal to you to
increase funding for those parks. Kalama Park, for example, houses our community
ballfields, tennis courts and large picnic pavilions. Kalama Park is located in the center
of Kihei and it needs help. The playground there, the only playground in South Maui is
old and decrepit and probably even dangerous. You already have passed a measure to
fund a lighted pathway around the exterior of Kalama Park. Please see that those funds
are used. We need that lighted pathway and that's for starters.
The bathrooms in Kalama Park and in the three Kamaole beach parks are deplorable. We
desperately need new ones and we need funding for proper maintenance. Thousands of
people are served by those facilities, visitors who drive Maui's economy. They're
corning to our South Maui beaches. I'm dismayed by the 6 percent shown in the pie chart
for our share of capital improvements.
Kalama Park and the Kamaole beach parks are not just the face of Maui's two thousand
of visitors. More importantly, they are the heart of Kihei, a rapidly growing family
community. We should be able to take our kids to these local parks safely. Please
increase budget amounts to support our South Maui beach parks. Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, ma'am. If you can state your name for the record, please.
MS. MOSLEY: Jeannie Mosley.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Mosley. Members, any questions for Ms. Moseley? Seeing
none. Thank you very much.
MS. MOSLEY: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes. Andrew Beerer followed by Curt Leonard.
MR. BEERER: Hi, welcome. My name is Andrew Beerer. Thank you for coming out tonight
and hearing us. Like some of the other speakers are going to address the issues of
supporting our parks. I would also like to advocate a three-part agenda simply
playgrounds for the keiki, skate park for the youth, and clean restrooms for everyone.
And then my particular niche is I'm here to really advocate for continued and increase
support of our skate parks.
Back at the September Mayor's meeting, we brought abut 40-50 kids came to testify in
favor of how much they used this facility and how important it is to this community. And
so we're always campaigning hard for an increased budget to help the Parks Department
and the Boys and Girls Club do that good work. In that tough campaign with the support
of KPAT, KCA, YMCA, Boys and Girls Club and the local community, the current
administration has rewarded us with a $112,000 in funding in this current budget. That's
going to help take care of those two parks the Kihei Park and the Kahului Park. And so
we'd just like to ask you to leave that money in there and hopefully we can really use it to
our benefit. And if there's any possibility of any further funding to also look in this
direction. But certainly, please, beg of you don't cut that out of there. It's very important
for youth of our society.
Skateboarding is the third most popular activity amongst American youth. It's more
popular than baseball these days. So it's very important to keep our skate parks here. In
1998, Maui County had five public skate parks and now we're down to two. So we seem
to be good at closing them but maybe not very good at resurrecting or revamping them.
So, please support the youth of the community, please support our parks. We need
playgrounds for the keiki, like they said they're not in great shape. Continue support of
the skate parks and clean restrooms for everyone locals and visitors alike. Thank you
very much for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, sir. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson. Excuse me, sir. Thank
you. Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Mr. Beerer.
MR. BEERER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you be more specific about the $112,000 you said is
in the budget for the skate park?
MR. BEERER: Yes. Well, I believe it's on Page 4 of the Parks Department budget ... just right
after the performance statistics, after the performance results. It's one of the first-line
item, I'm sorry I didn't bring it up here with me but it's on Page 4 of the actual Parks
Department budget. And it says $112,000 for skate park management and professional
services. I don't know exactly what that means but if you can assist with that it's much
appreciated.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that is all for Kihei or for Kihei and ...
MR. BEERER: No, that's for the entire County of Maui, I assume. So that would cover ...
currently our two public skateboard parks are located in Kihei and Keopuolani Park in
Kahului/Wailuku. There use to be one on Molokai but ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What about the one in Paia?
MR. BEERER: Well, that's not considered ... well, not necessarily public. It's not funded by
the Parks Department or the County per se. It is funded by the Paia Youth Center and
through private donations. And yes, that is a great facility but not in the same funding
department I don't believe.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay, thank you very much.
MR. BEERER: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any more questions? Excuse me, sir. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good evening, Mr. Beerer. Question on the Kihei and
Wailuku skateboard parks. Would you know if any work that needs to be done who's
going to do the work the Parks Department or the community themselves?
MR. BEERER: Well, in the past it has been a real kind of group effort. We've had efforts from
the Parks Department, we've had efforts from the YMCA who used to hold the contracts
through the Parks Department. It used to be a $30,000 per year contract through the
Parks Department that went to the YMCA. As of July 1st of this previous year, that
contract was turned over to the Boys and Girls Club and we've been campaigning for
increased funding, which what I speak of And then in addition to that, there's been a
huge amount of volunteer work that has been done at both of the parks. I, myself, had
put together a volunteer group that did hundreds of hours at this park when it was closed
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in September. We've had local construction companies volunteers who've done a ton of
work and also a member of KPAT with a great thanks to Jerry Shepherd, Bob
Richardson, other KP AT volunteers. They really help coordinate efforts there so we have
had a huge amount of community support and some County support. But the money
really hasn't been there enough, you know, to really properly take care of these facilities.
And the current Parks Director really has a great idea of putting in a new park that would
help alleviate some of the problems we have with the eight-year old park and we really
want to pursue that and hope that can, you know, really happen. So thank you for your
questions and your support.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you very much for that information. I just wanted
to find out if there were any monies that were already spent. If not, that's something we
have to contend with.
MR. BEERER: Yeah, I believe that little amount of money that's being going to the YMCA and
the Boys and Girls Club they've spent well and above pass that, you know, much to their
credit, the $30.000. I believe YMCA was spending close to $60,000 a year. The Boys
and Girls Club is on track to do the same. So they're spending a huge amount of their
own money. If there is any left over money, I'm not aware of it. Where can new money
come from? Possibly from parks assessment fees. I know other developers have told me
that they're putting in a lot of money. We're seeing a lot of development here in Kihei.
Putting a lot more youth in our community and I know that a lot of those fees aren't being
used so maybe that's somewhere we can really tap into some additional funding and use
that stuff currently for the current parks rather than saving it for the next big thing.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you very much.
MR. BEERER: You're welcome.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes. Curt Leonard followed by David Frazier.
MR. LEONARD: Good evening. Thank you very much for this opportunity to testify tonight.
I'd like to ... oh, my name is Curt Leonard. I work for Oceanit at the Tech Park. I'm
here this evening on behalf of the Maui Economic Development Board. I'd like to share
a few things that Oceanit collaboration that Oceanit have with MEDB over the past 12
months. The holiday job fare, which takes place every December for four years running
now, I think as many of you are aware there's been a ... we're blessed to have a boom in
the tech industry and we're growing like crazy.
Oceanit currently has 25 employees and we're looking to hiring an additional 10 over the
next 12 months. The MEDB through the Women Technology Program have a holiday
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job fare and we had many good applicants apply and, in fact, we just hired one of those
applicants over the past, actually this month so that's very positive. Another activity that
Oceanit is engaged with is we co-founded a high school internship program, and this high
school internship program provides students with some exposure with some tech industry
opportunities. This past year, six of those students, which were attending or participating
in this organization actually are pursuing college careers at major universities throughout
the country so it's been very successful.
Another collaboration that Oceanit has with the MEDB is through their high-tech Maui
group spearheaded by Torn Liu and this particular group has done two functions which
has been very valuable to Oceanit in trying to grow business development in recruiting.
The first they do is they publish a monthly newspaper something called High Tech Maui
and this is provided ... companies throughout Maui County, specifically in the Tech
Park. Some of the activities that are going on and sharing it with others that pick up this
literature. And just to share as another example is that High Tech Maui is planning to go
to the mainland for some conferences the next four weeks. They're going to go to a
National Space Symposium Conference and a bio-tech conference again in the next four
weeks. And at these conferences they represent Maui County companies and Oceanit is
one of those, and they hand out literature and one of the things is they hand out flyers so
it's really been a very positive experience that help Oceanit with some business
development as well as our recruiting efforts.
So these are just some of the things just in the past 12 months that Oceanit has worked
with, with the MEDB. So I wanted to come up here and request enthusiastically that
they've been a great supporter for the tech industry in Maui County, in general, and that
you give full consideration to their budget required for the year 2007. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
testimony.

Members, questions?

Hearing none.

Thank you for your

MR. LEONARD: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Wi11enbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. David Frazier, he has a hand out, and
be followed by Bob Richardson.

will

MR. FRAZIER: Good evening, Chair Kane and Committee Members. Shall I wait for the
handout or just get going? Okay. My name is David Frazier. I'm the President of the
Kihei Community Association. I'm testifying tonight on behalf of the KCA Board and
I've provided copies of my testimony this evening for the committee.
It's not news that the entire infrastructure of Maui from roads to beaches to a central
services such as fire and police has suffered historically from the triple punch of
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insufficient tax revenues, difficulty in delivery of capital projects and services that are
approved and unprecedented growth. There has been no exception in South Maui.
Regarding the Mayor's proposed 2007 budget, and in particular as it pertains to South
Maui where we are pleased to see increases in the park services and that there's been
some effort to provide capital funds directed specifically to South Maui, I'm here to raise
an alarm. The disparity between an approximate 30 percent South Maui real property tax
contribution and the approximate 2 percent South Maui sees back has often been
discussed. But my alarm is not so much about fair share or percentages of tax allocations
to South Maui as much as it is as real dollars and resources over the long term and the
future of South Maui. Our park facilities, all of our parks facilities are in dire need of a
capital injection and we are short of parks maintenance and service funds to take proper
care of them. Our roads are insufficient and traffic flow worsens with the installation of
each new signal light. Our crosswalks are dangerous, our system of sidewalks and bike
paths woefully inadequate. Now, it appears that our sewer system will require major
capital. Essential services, particularly police, are constantly short staffed and under
equipped as they struggle to protect the public. Combine the above with a growing crime
problem, drug use, the homeless, are apparent utter inability to solve such problems as
abandoned vehicles and waste pump out unprecedented growth with no real plan to deal
with it, residents clamoring for property tax relief, and the empress of the Pacific known
as Maui begins to look as though she's in danger of losing her proverbial clothes. One
only needs to read the paper, talk to a frequent Maui visitor or take a short drive around
South Maui for clear evidence of this. I could go on.
I've given you this evening a list of the things that we would like to see approved that are
currently in the budget, and I'm not going to read them now because I'm going to run out
of time. But I just would like to conclude with the fact that the Council and the
Administration must find a way to fund and execute the critical infrastructure necessary
to this island and insist on world class rather than settle for third world before we kill the
goose which lays the golden egg of tourism and, more importantly, the quality of life for
Maui residents. That is going to cost money and that is my alarm.
Finally, we all need to understand that although they may not be as significant as voter
basis as some of the other areas. South Maui and West Maui are in every way major and
critical components of the goose that lays the golden egg of tax revenue for Maui County.
Mahalo for your time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chair. Thank you, David. You know, when
we had the last KCA meeting here, Dain and I both attended it and we asked your
organization to set some priorities for the budget this year. Were you guys able to do that
and is that all included here?
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MR. FRAZIER: Uh, yes, thank you. I did include that all there and it's most of the things that
we wanted.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you just highlight that so people here can hear?
MR. FRAZIER: Yeah. Basically what we did is underscored what was already contained in the
Mayor's budget so we won't repeat that. But we did also add several things - the
playground park and we can talk about the number 500,000 but, basically, we think that's
a very important component. We added a million dollars in for the skateboard park. Part
of what Andy didn't talk about is that one of the big problems of that park is that it's
wood, it's rotting and it's falling apart constantly. So we put that in. We think it's
critical to have one somewhere here and our position is if the regional park never
happens, the skate park needs to happen sooner. We put in dealing with Kalama creek in
some way shape or form either by enhancing it as a wetlands area or basically making it a
bigger component of the park by putting a culvert down it. And anyone who has
experienced Kalama creek a few times is basically the cesspool that runs through Kalama
Park at this point.
Sidewalk funding for the makai side of South Kihei - this is an area that is a pedestrian
nightmare and is probably one of the biggest walking paths in all of South Maui. The
roundabout has been long discussed and long not happened so we put that back in there.
We'd like to see a permanent roundabout and we would like to see it permanent because
we think that a temporary roundabout will fail ultimately and will be designed to fail.
But anyone who has ever driven in Europe, anyone who has ever driven in Australia,
anyone who is familiar with how they work and the studies that have been done on them
will have no doubt about their effectiveness.
Lastly, a couple other things was to complete the open space guidelines for Maui so we
don't continue to build things that aren't appropriate to quality of life issues in South
Maui. We've been working on that a long time with Kihei. Five hundred thousand
dollars ($500,000) in mass grant money so we can get our bikeways and paths built
through here that just echoes our philosophy in the KCA of a bikeable, walkable
community which we do not have right now.
And then finally, the biggest problem that I allude to in my pet project is the fact that the
13 beach parks from Kenolio to Keawekapu are inexcusably in a state of disrepair. This
is not ... I'm not laying this on John Buck and the Parks Department. I'm laying it on
the fact that we don't have adequate funds. And those parks, if you walk through them
and I walked through them with the Mayor's office are woefully, woefully inadequate.
And I can give you some statistical examples that no one can argue with about how
inadequate they are and I will simply echo many, many people that will tell you that from
a visitor standpoint, from a resident standpoint, from a daily user of which I am, they are
not nearly up to par and are millions of dollars away and I don't know what that millions
is but I know that it needs to be thought of and it needs to be thought of quickly. It can't
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be a 20 or 30 year project. It needs to be addressed within the next few fiscal years.
Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much for that, David. You know, it would
be helpful if you would maybe just give us a list of where you feel the parks are
inadequate. We know that they are lacking, many of the parks are lacking facilities. We
have portable toilets in some of our parks. Many of the parks don't have showers.
Sprinkler systems are inadequate, the grass areas are worn out. Is there other things that
you can think of that ...
MR. FRAZIER: Well, the only other thing that I can add is the capacity issues. And if I might
just give you one statistic. We did do a study on the Kamaole I, II and III parks in
January. We had a confirmed 1,000 users that were in the water from an account from
the lifeguards. One thousand people that actually got wet per day in January at all three
of those beach parks. There's three stalls in the mens and three stalls in the womens at
Kamaole I park. Just to give you an example - it's cleaned once a day. That's one
example. Anyone can imagine and maybe in a hotelier can imagine that just does not
work.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just want to let you know that currently in the budget, the
Council hasn't voted on the budget yet, but currently in the budget there is park
caretakers that are assigned to South Maui and I have been told by Mr. Buck that they
will be, their assignment will be strictly to upkeep the beach park bathrooms on a regular
basis.
MR. FRAZIER: That's good news. We need it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I thought you'd like that. So, thank you very much for
this. It's much appreciated for all your work.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. On your handout, under add the following for
2007, the first item there is $500,000 for a new playground at Kalama Park. What kind
of a playground are you talking about?
MR. FRAZIER: Basically, it's replacing the existing one. We have a lot of ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is it the play structure?
MR. FRAZIER: The play, I'm sorry, the play structure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. FRAZIER: Correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay, thank you.
MR. FRAZIER: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions, Members? Hearing none. Thank you very much for your
testimony.
MR. FRAZIER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Willenbrink. Ms. Anderson, you need more questions?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I just wanted to add one more thing regarding the
bathrooms. Just so everybody knows - Bob Richardson has provided some photographs
that I'm duplicating for the Council members so they can all see close up what the
conditions of the bathroom are.
MR. FRAZIER: We'll be happy to help in any way we can.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Bob Richardson and then Lis Richardson.
MR. RICHARDSON: There's going to be a lot of talk about bathrooms tonight I can see that.
My name is Bob Richardson. We've got a group of volunteers that work in South Maui
and we work at the ... we started off working at the boat ramp and putting a trail into
that area and we've moved into the Kamaoles. And when we reached the Kamaole parks
we assumed that there would be a lot of problems that the public would be interested in
having resolved. But the biggest problem that we face is the bathrooms. They are in
horrible shape as you've heard and you'll see on the photographs. On other issues in the
parks, we've tried to pitch in and help the Parks Department. We can't help with the
bathrooms. It's a messy job, it's a dirty job, and a dangerous one and one that needs to be
done by trained professionals. Volunteers can't go in and help. I would beg you to
please leave in the budget the funding for the three caretakers that are going to be taking
over that responsibility. That would help thousands of park users on a daily basis. Thank
you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, sir. And I'm sorry I didn't hear you state your name. If you did,
that's fine. But if you can just state it again so we have it on record.
MS. RICHARDSON: Yes, it's Bob Richardson.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Richardson. Question, Ms. Anderson? Question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Richardson, what is the name of your website?
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MR. RICHARDSON: It's hoaloha aina. And if anyone that would be interested in that, I've got
a card that gives you the spelling on that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
everyone to see. Hoaloha ...

Thank you.

I think that would be a good thing for

MR. RICHARDSON: Hoaloha aina.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. RICHARDSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Friend of the land. Thank you. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Lis Richardson followed by Kimokea Kapahulehua.
MS. RICHARDSON: Hi, I'm Lis Richardson. My husband just spoke to you, and it's .com by
the way. Everyone really said what I wanted to say but I'm here to emphasize the need
for the Kalama Park playground. And the piece we have is beyond useful life. I was part
of the group that met with the Parks and the playground manufacturer to see if maybe
there was any possibility of just fixing or replacing parts to that playground piece, the
structure, so that we could buy some time before it would need to be replaced. But they
said that this unit has well exceeded its useful life and it cannot be repaired or patched.
And it's in disrepair now, it's missing with broken parts that poses a danger to the
children I think using it. The padded surface that was installed was also with an improper
installation and it is now cracked. The cracks are in some places three-fourths inches
deep and they're long and I'm surprised that there really hasn't been any accidents where
a toddlers or preschoolers might get their foot stuck and then it would be a tripping
hazard. But the good news is that this is not a maintenance issue. It's not a neglect issue.
The structure had actually aged pretty well. It served beyond it's useful life. It's
probably three or four years beyond replacing. And to prepare for a possible renewing of
the structure or replacement of the structure, we also received from two different
manufacturers a number of different design proposals that they had and they had some
very interesting ones that we can do for maybe not even as much as $500,000. Maybe in
the 3 or 350 and that's including removing what's there, the demolition, the tearing out
and replacing everything including a new concrete pad, the rubberized surface and then
the playground piece. And I think if we can get just beyond that, there's so much that
South Maui needs. We're in such dire traits but if we could just move towards the
replacing the things that we really, really need. And the playground piece, there is no
other playground piece in Kihei. So that's all. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I've been calling you Liz.
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MS. RICHARDSON: It's Lis.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Lis. I'm sorry.
MS. RICHARDSON: Just like Lisa in a way.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you provide us with a copy of the ...
MS. RICHARDSON: Couple of designs or something?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah. Whatever. It's not a bid necessarily.
MS. RICHARDSON: They have bids on the designs they have offered but of course that's
whether we go with that design or another. There's any number of possibilities.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. RICHARDSON: But they will work with us on a budget. Believe it or not, that rubberized
surface will cost $105,000 just to put down the surface. And the pieces themselves were
costing between 50, 60,000. They weren't the big item. It was a demolition and the
actual reconstruction.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So if you could just get us, get me some kind of hard copy
of that.
MS. RICHARDSON: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It would help in our deliberation.
MS. RICHARDSON: Sounds great.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, any further questions, Members? Hearing none. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Kimokea followed by Dave Mackwell.
MR. KAP AHULEHUA: Good evening, Chainnan Kane and Council members. My name is
Kimokea Kapahulehua. I'd just like to ditto David Frazier what he just said. But in
addition to that because of Parks and Recreation many years ago the Rotary was trying to
work with the County in getting Kamaole Park III between the Kihei boat ramp to open
up, so I'd like to add that that we either open up for parking or open up for a leisure park
and the State it looks like they're encroaching more and more parking on our side versus
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their side. So, I would like to see that we use that open space whether it's a leisure park
or for parking.
I'm here to testify on behalf of the youth, the Kihei Youth Center. I'm the Chairman of
the Kihei Youth Center. We have right down on North Kihei, you know where we're at.
I'd like for you to support our Kihei Youth Center. I have couple complaints to make.
First of all, that we have a basketball field that's attached with the youth center so we
have the lights being used not only for the youth center but for the public. We pretty
much shut down early in the evening. The public comes on and use the basketball field.
We've talked to your Parks and Recreation Department down here that either you guys
pick up the tab or share the cost with us. Presently, we run the cost at $1,000 a month in
electric. And we don't feel that we should be holding that electric bill.
Secondly, there's two set of bathrooms. One is for the park that's right there and that
bathroom seems to close earlier during the day such as one o'clock when people are still
coming there and use the fields and comes to the youth center to use our restrooms. We
don't have a problem being a service for the public but like this evening the biggest
problem is the amount of people that use your restroom. We, ourselves, cannot keep up
the amount of maintenance that we need to do to keep our bathroom to look in a present
facility. But I ask that you support the Kihei Youth Center in our endeavors that we deal
with the youth. In addition to that, I ask you to support all the youth centers and the Boys
and Girls Club, including Lanai and Molokai. It's really important that you do that. And
our outreach area that we seem to think is so outreach but we have to also include them is
a separate County every time, which is Hana. So please include that.
These recent months, we're very, very fortunate to have the MEO Youth Bank to come
down and work at the wetlands and put on some plants. We're putting in wetlands
restoration more than 15,000 plants, 29 different varieties. And the MEO Youth Bank
including Hana and Central Maui had come out to more than four working weekends to
help us out. And today, they're on the island of Molokai, went out yesterday morning at
7:15 and took 45 students out there to help with environmental projects on the island of
Molokai.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: So I ask you to support our youth. I will wrap up in one minute by
saying to you that I continuously want you to support the cultural development projects
that you guys have around the area in the County of Maui and including with that is the
open space that we have for environment, particularly supporting Maui Coastal Land
Trust, the . . . (inaudible) . . . the people in Hana, the people out in the West side,
particularly South Maui I would like for you to see and work with some Maui Coastal
Land Trust in preserving from North Kihei, which is Kealia, all the way to Maalaea and
work without them with A & B to either turn it over to the Maui Coastal Land Trust or
U.S. Fish and Wildlife, instead of keeping it in private hands. So that should go back to
public hands in perpetuity. If not Maui Coastal Land Trust, then it would be U. S. Fish
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and Wildlife. We would like to have the first choice, which is called Maui Coastal Land
Trust and we ask you to work with them to help them work with us. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Kapahulehua. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Kimokea.
MR. KAP AHULEHUA: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Aloha. What private land are you talking about?
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: We're talking about the Kealia condominium adjacent property, the
shorelines are owned from the vegetation out to the highway area or close to the highway
by Alexander & Baldwin all the way out to Maalaea. Even in the section of the U.S. Fish
and Wildlife the front portion is owned by Alexander & Baldwin. And we would like to
put that into the public hand. The public hand could be the U.S. Fish and Wildlife, Maui
Coastal Land Trust that we would like to have some kind of action going on in South
Maui for more open space. That would be one of the first choice that I would personally
like to see you work on.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then you mentioned earlier about the open space area
between the boat ramp and Kam III.
MR. KAPAHULEHUA: The adjacent property from Kamaole III belongs to the County, and
then there's a portion of that that belongs to the State. And the State has been using that
area for parking for the boat ramp. The commercial boat operators have rent-a-cars and
private cars parked up there to do their thing out at Molokini or somewhere else. And our
portion, which we call the County of Maui portion, I would like to see that portion to be
put in use either as a leisure park or a parking space because right now we have all the
cars parked outside. The parking space that we have for Kamaole
is inadequate and
has always been inadequate so we have cars parked on Keonekai Road and Lower Kihei
Road.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so is the State encroaching on our land with parking?
MR. KAP AHULEHUA: I think that they are encroaching in the top portion because my
understanding when we were working with the Rotary there was a straight line from the
roadway down. So I think that it's not really a surveyed thing. It's just put gravel and
parking cars. So I do believe that you need to have someone down there to make sure
that they're not encroaching on our property and that we, the County of Maui, need to
look at it in the future to use it as a leisure park or parking facilities.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. We'll check into that. Thank you, Kimo.
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MR. KAP AHULEHUA: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Thank you very much.

Any further questions for Mr. Kapahulehua?

Hearing none.

MR. KAP AHULEHUA: Thank you, Members, for being out here tonight. Thank you so much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Bantilan, if you can read the next person that signed up? I
believe it's Mr. Mackwell, Dave Mackwell.
MS. BANTILAN: Nodded yes.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. MACKWELL: Welcome, Council members. Thank you for coming to Kihei this evening.
Thanks for the rain in our desert. I will be a little redundant and because of what other
people have said the importance of our parks. I mean, they're the window, they're the
sole of our community. We are a linear community that runs along a beach starting from
Kealia all the way south.
I've been here for nine years and sadly I've seen the maintenance of the parks go down
since I've been here. It must be demoralizing for the people in the Parks Department
who don't have the resources when they see they can't even keep up with and keep things
level and that's really what's happened here. We have ... we're under served, I think, by
the County in South Maui. I mean, Dave made some mention about revenues but we're
20 percent of the population. Take away the tourists and everything else, we're 20
percent of the population. When you have a decade long capital improvement budget
that's less than 10 percent and we're 20 percent of the population, obviously, we're
losing something here. Not even considering the revenue sources. We probably create
40 or 50 percent of that revenue that come from tourism on Maui plus the high property
taxes I understand they come from places that don't put a lot of burden and that money is
needed in other places. But we still are under served, in my opinion. It's just fair to the
people.
Some of the issues on the parks that haven't been touched on are particularly, and I live
on the North end, so there's a stretch from the Maui Lu that goes up to Suda Store that's a
really beautiful beach area. It's totally neglected. Mai Poina Park is just been triaged.
Some monies are going to be spent on it that comes from Kai Makani but that's only
south of the buildings. It's not going to go north. We need an irrigation system up there
so we can help the plants grow on the beach to help catch the sand, which is blowing onto
South Kihei Road. And if you've ever driven down there, you'll notice that it's a dust
storm on many days. The dooms cover up picnic tables and the irrigation system has
been broken for so long that it's not possible to do anything with it.
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Another thing that has been neglected up there as we ... we have a thousand units being
developed in that area north of the whale sanctuary area, between there and Suda Store
with the Kai Makani condominium project, the Maui Lu is going to be a big timeshare,
there's a Waipuilani residential thing, where are those people going to go to the beach?
It's a long walk up there. There's no virtually no ... we're actually going to lose
parking spaces along the road when the beaches improve there. You got to think of a
long term future where are all these tourists and people that are moving here to South
Maui and people who come from Up country to use the beaches, where are they going to
keep their cars. We're really ... this is long term. I'm not proposing it for the budget for
this year but somebody has to be doing some planning on this in the long term.
The other issue that was discussed -UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Three minutes.
MR. MACKWELL: -- irrigation system and I've said that before so we really got to take a long
look at what our community is going to be and what we're going to have for our visitors
and residents, and so I beg you to really give the parks a lot of attention. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can state your name for the record, please.
MR. MACKWELL: Oh. Dave Mackwell.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mackwell. Questions, Members, for Mr. Mackwel1? Hearing
none. Thank you very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Margie de1a Cruz followed by Joe Bertram.
MS. DELA CRUZ: Good evening. My name is Margie dela Cruz speaking on behalf of Maui
Adult Day Care Centers where I work, and also I'm speaking on behalf of MEO
Transportation. I would like to thank you all for your support you have provided the
Maui Adult Day Care Centers. As you aware, Maui Adult Care Centers help to keep the
frail elderly individuals at home for a longer period of time, preventing premature
admission to a nursing home. We provide more service to clients and their families by
providing the SunDowning Program that we started in September last year and that's
every Friday evening until 8:30, and also a Saturday Respite Program. In addition, in
June 2006, we are opening our new High Functioning Intergenerational Program at the
Nisei Veterans Memorial Center, and we will be relocating our Lahaina Center from the
old Malu-ulu-o le1e Cultural Center to the Hale Mahaolu Eono facility in September
2006. Not only do we provide care for our clients, we also address the needs of families
and caregivers by providing six monthly caregiver support groups, quarterly workshops,
and counseling.
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With this in mind, I am asking you to please support our line item. With the help of the
County, we are better able to keep the cost to the clients and their families affordable and
provide quality care.
I would also like to thank the County of Maui and MEO Transportation for all they do to
support the elderly and disabled in the community. Thanks to MEO Transportation for
the professional way they accommodate our clients with limited capacities. We have ...
35 percent of our clients take the MEO transportation to and from the Maui Adult Care
Center. So please make sure that you continue this excellent service.
Thank you all for your kind and generous assistance to Maui Adult Day Care Center and
MEO Transportation.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. dela Cruz. Members, questions?
MS. DELACRUZ: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none. Thank you very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Joe Bertram then Cynthia Koziolas.
MR. BERTRAM: Hello. Welcome to Kihei. Nice to see you folks here this evening. I'm Joe
Bertram III and I'm Chair of the Kihei Community Association's roads, roundabouts, and
greenways committee. It might seem like kind of a strange combination of things but it is
actually . . . it's dedicated to creating what we're looking for in Kihei, which is a
pedestrian-oriented community. And to be pedestrian-oriented, we need to provide a
pedestrian experience at a seamless as it runs from the parks, as it runs along the streets
and as it goes through our greenway system. And this one system is not only attractive it
gets people to walk and is an interesting and fun thing but the main thing that we're
looking for right now is safety_ We are so unsafe. That is the one thing you hear from
every single person who tries to walk or bike in this town is it's so unsafe.
So, the three things that we're supporting in this .. , fact, actually, I wanted to give you
a statistic that was just put out recently about comparing pedestrian fatalities and
spending on walking and bicycling by state. We tie New York, the State of New York at
23 percent is the portion of all deaths, traffic deaths that are pedestrian. We're the
highest in the nation along with New York. And it's because we only spend 1.2 percent
of all the federal funds we get on transportation funds on walking and biking. It's scary.
It really is scary out there and we need to start making it much, much safer for us. The
safest, of course, is first, on all our streets we need to have sidewalks. We don't have
sidewalks the entire length of our main boulevard, which is South Kihei Road, and it's
amazing amount of folks you see walking that every, every morning. The first place that
we've identified is the southern end there, and that really does need to have a sidewalk
put in. We need at least on one side of the road a continuous sidewalk. It's the bear
minimum.
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Next is the roundabout. Roundabouts are 75 percent safer than lighted intersection. This
is from the Federal Highway Administration. It doesn't need to be proven. It doesn't
have to have an example to do it again. It's there. Put in a permanent roundabout. It
works.
Finally, we're asking and this is, to me, the most exciting. We're asking for 500,000 to
actually fund a volunteer citizen effort to create the greenway here in the middle of our
town. That's the safest area is when you separate the people from cars. The greenway
that we've been proposing for over 15 years has yet to be ... have one foot built. We
have no greenway. So what we'd like to do is in this next year with this 500,000 work
with Hoaloha Aina and the volunteers that have all stepped forward and we're working
with other groups right now to actually build a walking path the entire length of our
greenway corridor. The 500,000 will help us to establish the right-of-way, the entire
length we're about to lose it on the southern end because it hasn't been used and Public
Works has not kept the right-of-way open and so we have to maintain and make sure that
we get a walking path all the way through from this end all the way through, and that we
will actually build a Hawaiian walking path in a year. We can do it but we need your
help and we need some County buy in to make this happen. But we can be, we are a
community who helps ourselves but we need some help to help ourselves. So we could
use the money but we also need maybe a little bit of pressure on a . . . this little
department called Public Works to work with us, not to fight against us, in trying to
create safer, narrower streets, sidewalks on every street, and get our walking paths built
now. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Bertram. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Joe.
MR. BERTRAM: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for coming.
MR. BERTRAM: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Two questions. First, on the southern end of the bikeway
or greenway, you're saying you're in danger of losing the right-of-way?
MR. BERTRAM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you explain that?
MR. BERTRAM: Well, basically from Kanani Road to Ponana Street. The corridor was not, it
was not asked for by the County. It was set aside in many places but in other places it's
been left to go back or not to be used at all. It's been fenced off behind several
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condominiums and right now the Mayor's Office is working to purchase the last end of it
which is a lot up on Ponana Street, which will allow us stilI to get to Wailea and to Maui
Meadows and still allow us to access that end. With that though we're still having to get
around the top of Maui Hill, around the top ofMaui Kamaole, then there's a corridor then
it goes all the way across the top, through the middle, beyond the school behind the ABC
Store where Towne Development is putting in right now. But once you get behind the
Maui Coast Hotel to Walaka Street there are some properties there that are also behind a
condo which has never been set aside or established even though it's on the map. And
then there's one lot at the top of Walaka Street that's right now being built on that we
need to get some kind of easement across to make sure that we can get to Walaka, which
will take us across Awihi to Kanani. So it's all still there. There's still a corridor there.
There's nothing built in it yet but if we don't move now we could lose it. And it will be
the end of a dream.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. Maybe we can meet later to talk more in
detail. The other thing I wanted to know because you're so involved in pedestrian issues.
The southern area where you're talking about ... it's like Kam III down to the ramp
where the sidewalk turns into -MR. BERTRAM: Nothing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --grass and sprinklers.
MR. BERTRAM: It comes into the street, actually. But right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And it accents a condominium complex. So do you know
if that right-of-way if they were ever required to put in sidewalks along with their
project?
MR. BERTRAM: No, they weren't. They basically decided that there was right-of-way issues
and so they never were required at that point. We're asking for one along the mauka, I
mean, the makai edge because we figured we should start with one.
we could put on
both, that would be excellent too because there are people on both sides of the street.
And so for the bare minimum, we need a sidewalk. I know there's money in the funds
right now for a sidewalk down by Keawekapu Beach along with some parking stalls.
That's all the way at the end of South Kihei Road and, basically, you don't really even
need it there because there's not a traffic; that's a dead-end street. But before you get to
Okolani Drive and back, we definitely need a sidewalk.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But if you put it on the makai side you're going to take
away parking.
MR. BERTRAM: On the makai side basically once you're ... from Okolani Drive back it's
basically just people's front edges. There's all rich people's homes. So they park behind
their gates. There's not much parking that's on the street.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So you're not talking further north where I'm thinking,
right?
MR. BERTRAM: Right. No.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: At the end ofKam III?
MR. BERTRAM: Right. But we do want to hook up with Kam III and you're right we should
have some angle, some parallel parking in there too so we should maintain the parking
but put in a sidewalk.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. BERTRAM: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Bertram? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Good evening, Joe.
MR. BERTRAM: Good evening, Joe.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you for coming out and testifying in regards to
the eminent domain of several properties in Kihei, South Kihei.
MR. BERTRAM: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I think that's the first step, probably one of the steps that
the County is taking to purchase some of this land so that we could get the North-South
collector road as well as your bikeway and greenway started. So we've already passed a
resolution for Public Works to go ahead and start doing that.
MR. BERTRAM: Great. Thank you very much. And I just want to say thank you for that but
also that we do need to keep up on this so that we don't waste that money by losing yet
another spot that will prevent it from being all the way through. But thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Further questions? Hearing none. Thank you, Mr. Bertram.
MR. BERTRAM: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Cynthia Koziolas and then Jean Prandini.
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MS. KOZIOLAS: Good evening, Mr. Chairman and Council members. My name is Cynthia
Koziolas and I am a therapist. I work as a clinical specialist for Maui Family Support
Services. I am here to . . . for two issues. One is to testify for MEO Enlace Hispano
Program, and the second issue is the early Head Start for Maui Family Support Services.
As a therapist, well, I just want to let you know that ... I'm a little bit nervous. I've
never done this one. We service and we help families with children, Maui Family
Support Services, of ages 0 to 3. Prenatal children to toddlers. It has happened that we
have Spanish speaking families and some workers we had they did horne visiting they
quit so we didn't have any resources. So I called MEO Hispanic link and they were kind
enough to be able to say, okay, we'll do some translation. It wasn't really easy for them
to say, yes, we'll do it because you know the lack of resources and the staff is minimal
like three people there. . .. (Change Tape - start Tape 2A) ...
. . . We talked and we carne up with the idea, well, you know, we have goals that are
similar so together collaborating we might be able to help these individuals not only with
translation but goals so that they would become more independent, they could
acculturate, look for resources for them.
Our Healthy Start, our main mission is to prevent child neglect and abuse. And so we
provide child development information to the families and we also refer to the
community services - if it's domestic violence, substance abuse, mental health issues,
and anything else, you know, if they need housing, they need legal support so we're there
for the families and they're vulnerable and especially if they're speaking Spanish and
they really don't know the system and so they do really don't have any voices. So I want
to be able to advocate for Hispanic link.
Now, the CEO of Maui Family Support Services wrote a letter and I would like to be able
to pass this to you. And this is for the Early Head Start Program that we have. Could I
give it to ...
CHAIR KANE: Why don't you finish your testimony then you can give it to the staff and then
they'll give it to us.
MS. KOZIOLAS: Alright.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. KOZIOLAS: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: If you can conclude your comments, go ahead.
MS. KOZIOLAS: Sure. Early Head Start Program is also a preventative program, and we have
a Kupukupu Child Development Program that supports parents that are working or
attending school. They are of low income. The maximum income that they could have is
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$18,510 per year for a family of three. We have actually a County line item budget that
the Mayor approved. So I just wanted to highlight that for you and if you could consider
it we would really appreciate it.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any questions? Hearing none. You can drop that off with our staff
members. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Uh, yes. Pat Ross is going to go next and then Jean Prandini.
MS. ROSS: Mr. Chairman and Members of the Council, thank you for letting me testify, Jean,
ahead of you. I have health issues and a husband at home that needs me to get home
asap. Thirty years ago when Jack and I came to Kihei we hesitated to buy in that area. It
was an incredibly beautiful area because it was so isolated and believe me that's not the
problem today. You are constantly battered with criticism of over development, lack of
schools, roads, infrastructure, recreation and park space. However, many years ago we're
ever thankful when you came to our rescue and you purchased Kamaole Point. It was
threatened to be developed into seven restaurants, an amphitheater for huge luaus and
rock groups, and the Council in its wisdom, at the plea of thousands of petitioners in that
area, purchased the Point for over six million dollars. It was to be used by the people of
Maui.
When dedicated to the Parks Department, the old home frequented so many years by
Gladys Raven while she was the Outdoor Circle fame. I think you probably remember
she got that started along with Gene Thompson and so forth. But it was to be used for
community meetings when she vacated it. The building is old. It's not useful for the
purpose we want it but there is room to build a community multi-use facility there that
can be used by everyone. Please keep in the budget the request of $350,000 to complete
this dream facility we have requested for so many years. With the huge development in
the Kihei area now, we need this addition to the parks system. With the thousands who
frequent it and the more who are coming, we really need it. Bathrooms, maybe pavilions
like they have at Kalama Park, something we can all use ... just to get together, talk
story. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, ma'am.

you can please state your name for the record.

MS. ROSS: Oh. Patricia Ross. Kihei.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Ross. Members, any questions for Ms. Ross? Ms. Anderson.
Excuse me, Ms. Ross, Ms. Ross, we have a question for you.
MS. ROSS: I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: That's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You're Pat Ross?
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MS. ROSS: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Last year, it was a pavilion or a gazebo-type thing.
MS. ROSS: Respite care center. That's what we were trying to call it. But we want a facility
there with ... the community had a lot of meetings and they all put in that idea what they
wanted. It needs to have a place for people to meet and talk, to have a cup of coffee,
maybe a small little kitchen but bathroom facilities, a shower for people who come up
from the beaches, simply a place for that community to get together to feel like a
community. We need it badly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So it's not an open air thing any more? You want it to be.

MS. ROSS: Well, we could do it open air anything. We're open. We want a roof over it to
protect us from the hot sun and the occasional rain.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. ROSS: You're welcome. May I add one other thing. Thank God for Maui Adult Day Care
Center. It's given me my life back. My husband goes five days a week from 7:30 to 5:00
and it's absolutely incredible. Thank you very much for supporting that.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Ross. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Jean Prandini followed by Tony Fisher.
MS. PRANDINI: Good evening, Mr. Chair, Members of the Council. I'm so happy to see you
all here tonight. I bet you're all looking at me like I'm a bad penny but I'm not going to
go away. I have been fighting for Kamaole Point Park since Charmaine, since your Dad
was Mayor. He was the one that inspired me and I've been on it ever since, and look, I
still don't have the Point. But now I'd like a pavilion so we can sit and chat and do
whatever. We don't have a place to sit when you're walking along the road or anything.
When I moved here, my hair was your color, Michelle, look at it now. And I worked
darn hard at this. And how many times have I begged you, Riki, to get in there and fight
for us, and you too, Dain. Well, the Mayor finally heard me so he put the money in the
budget for the pavilion. And I hope and I pray that each and everyone of you vote for
that to stay in the budget. And if anyone votes against it, I'll haunt you to your grave.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, state your name for the record.

- 27 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 28, 2006 (Kihei)

MS. PRANDINI: My name is Jean Prandini and I've been a resident of Maui for 30 years and
I've been volunteering for almost all of those 30 years, and I've enjoyed it immensely
especially when I come up against people like you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Jeannie. I wanted to find out is the 350,000
going to be sufficient because that's in an SMA area and it's got all kinds of issues with
permits and I just am concerned. Are you sure that it's going to be sufficient money to
do the pavilion and get all the permits?
MS. PRANDINI: Jo Anne, what do I know about building? I just wanted to get my foot in the
door. It's taking me what 15, 20 years already. So I don't know. But when the time
comes I'm sure you all will be generous to make up the loss.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You know, my only concern was if that's enough for design
and construction or just for design. But we'll find out from the Parks Department.
They'll give it to us.
MS. PRANDINI: Thanks.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thanks so much.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Thank you very much.
MS. PRANDINI: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Tony Fisher and Kimlen Fong.
MR. FISHER: My name is Tony Fisher. I love her. Last year, you all came together and got us
some funding to put some sprinklers and kept the lawn and thank God to Buck Joiner for
going down there and putting a major project in there. It's a beautiful park now. But it's
lacking something. And that thing that it's lacking more than anything else is what Jean
just told you. I don't know whether 350,000 was enough. The estimate we came up
with, we staffed it through a few things because we didn't have a lot of time but again the
comment that was made about the Parks Department taking a look at that, it would make
an enormous ... first of all, it's an open building. It doesn't have any walls. It's like
Kalama Park. So that's the first thing I want to talk about. By the way, Nancy on the
way over said that we need to call this - Villa Prandini when it's built.
The second thing I want to talk about is something that's near and dear to my heart and
that's MEO. Ever since I have lived on this island, MEO has been such an important part
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of everything that we do here. And I urge all of you when the concept of shall we cut
some where, don't cut MEO. Those people do such a wonderful job.
The third issue is Kaunoa. I love Kaunoa. They support me on some things that I do for
driver safety program training for AARP and they are just the most wonderful people in
the world - Robin Tanaka and Dana and the rest of the people over there. Maui has the
best senior support. I go over to West Maui and teach at the West Maui Senior Center on
a regular basis and it's just absolutely wonderful. Those are two things that people with
this color hair, Dain, really enjoy having a part of. And if I've got a couple of minutes
my favorite subject - tax reform.
We have submitted to the Chair a final version of a bill for an ordinance for the property
tax reform. It has rates in it, it has rollback dates, it has the whole kitten caboodle. And
we hope that the County Council will sit down and take a look at this. Bill Tavares and I
have fought long and hard, went to the Executive Committee of COMET and what we
have concluded is that if it is not going to be handled by the County this year, then we
must take it to referendum. We met with Brian Moto last week. We met with the County
Clerk last week. We are developing the thing necessary to take it to a vote of the public
in November. We think we have enough-MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. FISHER: --certainly. Did you say three minutes?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Nodded yes.
MR. FISHER: Thank you. We have enough money set aside so that we can afford to go and do
what is necessary. But we really would love to have this County Council take this thing
and either vote it up or vote it down, but at least to vote for it. And the most cooperative
bunch of people in the world frankly are you guys. You've been wonderful. By the way,
we are filming at the present time six 30-minute TV programs. First two are in the can
will be coming out at AKAKU, we'll do four more. They try to tell the story of what this
property tax reform is all about. We're on your side. We want to do it your way. And if
not, then we'll let the people of the County of Maui decide. And again, we have no axe
to grind. We're not mad at anybody. We want to do this cooperatively. So I thank you
very much, and it's four minutes, right?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Members, questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Tony.
MR. FISHER: Hi, Michelle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Do you know that the Mayor put in his budget 60,000 for
design and $290,000 for a 40 x 30 foot open pavilion with restrooms?
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MR. FISHER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that meets your needs?
MR. FISHER: That's what we had generally laid out. We'd like it to be a little bit larger.
AARP South Maui Chapter would like to hold our meetings there. It would be a
wonderful thing to set. If you haven't been to Kamaole Point Park, please go there. And
you sit up on the side of the hill and we would like to move from Kalama Heights and
have the ability to plug a coffee pot in or at least have some chairs for people to sit down.
We think that's a good number but I'm not a design engineer, I'm not an architect. I
understand that the land is cheap though.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's the size that you folks want it?
MR. FISHER: What we actually asked for was 50 x 40.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 50 x 40?
MR. FISHER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And have you found a site? You're not going to have to
move the current pavilion?
MR. FISHER: Well, there's two buildings there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. FISHER: There's a gazebo which sits all by itself.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. FISHER: And there is the building that now houses
lifeguard.

Police Department and

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MR. FISHER: My feeling is that is a County issue and you guys need to decide whether you're
going to tear that down. We, at one time, had a meeting over there and somebody we
asked if we could hold meetings there, and they said, no, it's not safe to hold meetings in
this building. And I said, well, why are the people in there all the time? They said, well,
they're County employees. That worries me. But I guess if somebody has figured out
that that's a good thing.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: My question, Tony, is have you guys ...
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MR. FISHER: There's plenty of room out there to put up a pavilion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Without tearing down the existing building or the gazebo
there's another area that you cited.
MR. FISHER: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. FISHER: And that looks to be okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Fisher?
MR. FISHER: Or Tony as the case may be.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none. Thank you, Mr. Fisher. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Kimlen Fong and then Alika Atay.
MS. FONG: Oh, hi, everyone. I'm speaking on behalf ofMEO's core four business classes of
which I'm a recent graduate. I'm also fourth generation half Chinese, half Hawaiian,
born and raised here on Maui. And I also have a high-tech marketing background. I've
lived nine years in California where I gained my experience through school and working
for two high-tech firms.
In the summer of2001, I resigned from Intel's marketing hand held division to be able to
return back home to Maui, start a family, buy a house, you know, settle down, all that
stuff. Although I loved my job at Intel, Maui had a stronger calling for me. I also have
and always had a desire to be self-employed. I knew how to write marketing plans but I
didn't have the tools necessary to create a successful business. MEO's class taught me
how to create a business plan and from that business plan I learned that my original
business idea was more of a hobby than a viable business, able to sustain itself here on
Maui. But I haven't given up yet. I still have opportunities and ideas. But in the
meantime, I am an event planner for a company called Envisions Entertainment. We are
based out of Kihei. Weare a production and entertainment company focused on the
convention and travel industry here in Hawaii. We create events on all major islands,
including Lanai. I've been at Envisions now for the last four years and also back at home
on Maui for the last four years. I think one of the greatest things about Envisions is that it
started as a small grassroots company in 1995 by three local guys - all born and raised in
Hawaii. In 2005, we had a gross revenue of over $5 million. We employ 22 full-time
employees and as many as 60 part-time employees during peak business season. And
Envisions also went to MEO a couple years back and received some help from them.
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So, in my opinion, it is a success story that I think we need more of here on Maui and I
want to thank you for the knowledge that I've gained through MEO's business classes.
And I also want to ask that you please continue to fund this project for all of Maui
County's future entrepreneurs. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can state your name for the record.
MS. FONG: Kimlen Fong.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, thank you, Ms. Fong. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank
you for your testimony. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Next we have Alika Atay. He has a handout for Council and then Buck
Joiner.
MR. ATAY: Aloha, Chairman Kane and Council members. My name is Alika Atay. I was born
and raised here on the island of Maui. I'm currently the Executive Director for the Kihei
Youth Center. What's being distributed is a brochure that's been recently distributed to
all of the youths of South Maui in the three major DOE schools.
I've been working with the youth of Maui for over 30 years. And currently as the
Executive Director, I want to say that the Kihei Youth Center supports a successful youth
development model that includes a family life, school success and positive afterschool
community involvement. Throughout the 30 years, youth work and recreational work has
come a long ways. It's more than just passing out balls and blowing a whistle. We
recognize that adolescent is a pivotal period between childhood and adulthood. It is a
time when youth need to acquire the attitudes, the competencies, the values and the social
skills that will carry them forth towards a successful adulthood. It is also the time when
they need to avoid choices and behaviors that will limit their future potentials.
KYC plays a crucial role in helping the young people navigate this phase. At least 25
percent of adolescents are at serious risk of not achieving productive adulthood. And
they face such risk at substance abuse, adolescent, pregnancy, school failure and
involvement with the juvenile justice system. We at KYC believe that we're a
community member that is watching out for our children, taking responsibility for their
safety and well-being as well as steering them in the right direction.
I'm here this evening to say "Mahalo" to you, mahalo for your funding and support that
you have given in the budget and plans for youth centers in allowing we, at the youth
center, to continue our service of delivery. We do have a philosophy there that we want
to be able to continue. I've been at this helm for three years. This is my third year. The
first year we serviced over 200; second year we serviced over 400 registered members;
and currently, right now, we're on track to service over 500 registered members.
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Last year, we assisted around seven to eight youths to acquire employment. Definitely
three of them have acquired full-time employment working in the South Maui
community. Along with that, we have acquired and helped eight youths to acquire
getting on to higher education and college with scholarships and so on.
I'm here to say, thank you, for the current funding levels and requesting the current
funding levels and, if possible, to also encourage an increase in funding levels. We're
projecting to continue to increase our serving. We do have a formula of a ratio of staffing
to youth and with the increased youth we do have a need for increased staffing expenses.
Along with that, we also have a dire need of a new van. The kids are very attached to old
Rusty. But I think Rusty is coming around to seeing its days and further funding for the
financing of a van is needed.
Earlier, Kimokeo, alluded to some issues that we have at the center. The center was built
with a building and a basketball court. And when it was built, the lighting for the
basketball court was attached to the youth center building. The facility there, the court is
being utilized not only for the youths at the center but also the County Parks basketball
league as well as the general public. We're experiencing an increase of our electric bill
especially during the winter months of night-time use of the court. And we want to be
goodMS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. ATAY: --stewards and good community members allowing the community that
opportunity to exercise and play basketball, but we do have an increased expense of
electricity. Kimokeo also mentioned the need of the bathrooms. For whatever reason,
the Parks closes the bathrooms in the afternoons around 1 -2 o'clock. And so the general
public comes to the Kenolio complex looking for restrooms to use. They come into the
youth center. We're accommodating, we welcome them but it's also an added expense.
More toilet paper, more hand towels, more soap is utilized and we share with that burden
through our operating expenses. So I don't know the issue. We've addressed it with the
Parks and we need some assistance there.
Once again, I want to say Mahalo and we'll look forward to your continued support for
youth centers.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Atay. Members, any questions for Mr. Atay?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: I have one.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Atay.
Department have a bathroom out there other than yours?
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MR. AT AY: Yes. They have a bathroom right in the parking lot, right behind the baseball back
slot.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: But it's closed?
MR. ATAY: It's open certain times in the morning and for whatever reason it's closed in the
afternoons. And sometimes when there's baseball season it's closed so all the kids and
all the families all come into the youth center. I don't know why. You know they say
it's because of vandalism and graffiti but I've been there for three years and we got rid of
the gangs and we got rid of the graffiti so I don't know why they're still operating from
three years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
MR. ATAY: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Atay. Ms. Willenbrink, after the next testifier we're going to
take a break for ten minutes. So if you can introduce our next testifier please.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Very well. Buck Joiner.
MR. JOINER: Aloha ka kou. I'm Buck Joiner. I would like to start off my testimony asking for
the 18th consecutive year for support for the North-South Collector Road. I have asked
for 18 years that the line be drawn on the map. That the right-of-way be set aside and
that it be planned for four lanes and be built for two. Unfortunately, for 18 years that
advice has not been followed so now you guys are really dealing with having to pay a lot
more to make this happen.
Item No.2, the Kalama Park playground is painful for me to be here tonight listening to
people talking about the playground being end of life or what have you. I built that
playground or at least I was in charge of construction. Charmaine, I think you were head
of the Parks Department when we built that. We came 15 years ago to this body and
asked for $75,000 just to match the funds, the 75,000 that the community put together.
We designed it, we built it, we made it happen, total investment of $150,000 but it only
costs you $75,000. So you see now they're talking about $500,000 to replace it I think
should tell you the value of the volunteer effort that was put into it.
Uh ... the next thing, there was a brief mention of the concreting of the culvert next to
the whale, I would like to strongly oppose that for that ditch or any other. The natural
ditches right now there are dirt at the bottom. The water comes in and it filters down in.
It goes into the ground and out. And it filters the dirt. When you put all that concrete in,
that dirt goes straight into the reef. So I am very, very much opposed to that.
Property tax reform ... I back Tony's thing. I like to see acquisition based funding or
assessments on that. Oprah Winfrey recently bought a property in Kula for $3.5 million.
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It's assessed at $2 million. Tax assessment is $2 million. My own property tax is sky
rocketing but my income is not.
Next item, I strongly oppose continuously to the funding of the Maui Visitors Bureau at
$3.85 million of County money in addition to something between $3 and $4 million from
the State for a total of somewhere between $7 and $8 million for parties, promotion, for
champagne, for lobster, for airplane tickets, for quarter million donations, to golf
tournaments. It is obscene and reprehensible.
And last, at Kamaole Point, I would ask that you leave in the money in the budget for
Kamaole Point. That represents only 5 percent of the original purchase price of that
property. We'll work out the plans. We'll work with the Parks Department. It is
possible, I'm not making a promise but it is possible that we can even get that design for
free.
MS. WILLENBRlNK: Three minutes.
MR. JOINER: If we get the community involved in it, we can get more for our money. Again,
recognizing the value of volunteer effort. Actually, if! had the choice, I would like to see
the use of the building that's there. We bought that park for the people. It is now being
used for the County. I don't believe that County offices need to be down on the beach.
I'm really opposed to that. I just assume to see that building tom down and open that
space up for the public.
And as everybody else has said, clean restrooms we need those. We've been
complaining about it for years. The current situation is not acceptable. Thank you very
much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Joiner.
Anderson.

Members, any questions for Mr. Joiner?

Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one real quick. Buck, you said that you want to see
the building tom down. Are you talking about Kam
MR. JOINER: No, I'm talking about Kamaole Point.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Uh, Kamaole Point.
MR. JOINER: I'm talking about the building there that the Police and Lifeguards, they say that
it is absolutely unsafe for the public but the County people have been in there for six
years. So, you know, it sounds to me that somebody is talking out of the side of their
mouth. They want it for their own use but the public can't. But we bought the park for
the public, right?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other questions? Hearing none. Thank you, Mr. Joiner.
Members, it's 7:35 on the wall clock behind me. We will take a recess and reconvene at
7:45. We stand in recess .... (gavel) ...
RECESS:

7:35 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:48 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) ... This Budget and Finance Committee is reconvened. Ms.
Willenbrink, if you can introduce our next testifiers, please.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, Mr. Chair. Our next testifier is Sharon Ferrell and then James
Williamson.
MS. FERRELL: First of all, my name is Sharon Ferrell. I'm the Controller at Ka Lima 0 Maui.
And I would like to ask the Council members to support the funding.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Ferrell, I'm sorry for interrupting. If you can adjust the mike and point it
towards you. Thank you very much. There you go.
MS. FERRELL: It's okay now? Okay. I would like to ask the Council members to support the
funding for our service contracts with the Parks Department, the Police station, the Fire
station and the landfill. To be fiscally responsible we're seeking a modest 3 percent
increase to cover the increases in our expenses, such as gas, health costs and among
others. Ka Lima has been serving the disabled population for over 50 years and
providing the County with grounds and custodial service in the County parks for over 25
years. Presently, our County parks contract is the agency's largest and most important
training and employment project. This contract provides gainful employment for over 40
people many of whom would not have no other job opportunities if such a work project
were not in place.
The County Administration members of the Council and the staff of the County Parks
Department are to be congratulated for recognizing and supporting the needs for this
model employment project serving the needs of Maui's disabled and economically
disadvantaged adults.
Ka Lima employs, provides daily custodial and grounds
maintenance services in 17 of Maui' s most heavily used parks. We appreciate the work,
take pride in our quality of service, and ask that you continue to make available the funds
necessary to continue this important work project for the disabled and the economically
disadvantaged. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. That was light and fast. Any questions, Members? Hearing none.
Thank you very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: James Williamson and then Julie Burleson.
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MR. WILLIAMSON: Aloha, Council members. My name is James Williamson. The principal
concern my wife, Doris and I have with the budget is the issue of escalating real property
taxes on our residence. We are long term resident retirees some 18 years on the same
property in Kihei living on a fixed income. Over the last three years, in particular, the
assessed value of a homeowner's property has sky rocketed. It increased 17 percent in
Fiscal Year 2005; 27 percent in Fiscal Year 2006; and now in 2007 their annual increase
is 40 percent. Of course the increase in property taxes follows. It would seem as though
the County is trying to force retired seniors out of their homes. We and many others
living in our subdivision are planning to appeal the property assessment for Fiscal Year
2007. Even though such tax appeals have not been too successful. In addition, we
strongly support the Mayor's budget proposal to reduce the tax rate from $3.50 a
thousand to $2.14 a thousand, and request that the County Council approve this change
continuing with a $200,000 exemption. Thank you very much for your attention.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Williamson. Members, questions? Seeing none. Thank you
very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Julie Burleson and then Linda Farrell.
MS. BURLESON: Hi, my name is Julie Burleson. I'm a teacher for MEO Head Start here in
Kihei. I'm here on behalf ofthe families at my school who aren't able to be here but they
wrote letters to all of you just thanking you from the bottom of their hearts the chance
that their kids get to go to school and get a head start on their education and make friends
and be able to go on monthly excursions out in the community and stuff. So they just
want to thank you very much.
And I, myself, would like to thank you for supporting MEO Head Start. It fills a great
need in the community and supporting all MEO Head Start programs. Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead state your name for the record.
MS. AGCAOILI: Aloha, my name is Regina Agcaoili. Along with me is my husband, Ikaika.
We are past Head Start parents. We have four children that were enrolled and I know
that I've been here numerous times in the past to say thank you. But sincerely from the
both of us without your support, we wouldn't be able to succeed and be where we're at
today with the many services that Head Start offers. And not only that, you know, I
started thinking about it. I was sitting back there listening to everybody else. But on
behalf of all the other social services' components out there in the community, without
your support, MEO as an organization wouldn't be able to succeed. I mean, as a past
parent, what I've learned and what I've seen is that, in my opinion, MEO has succeeded
so much because they have so many partnerships out there in the community. And
because of them being able to do that, I was able to utilize all those services. And the
thing goes in my life and succeed and be where I am today. So I just want to say thank
you so much and continue supporting us. Mahalo.
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MR. LEE: Howzit, bruddah. Excuse me. This is not my normal thing. But anyway, I'd like to
thank you guys. I'm a father of four. Without the program like how my wife said, we
wouldn't be where we are today. It's a great thing. It's not only just a preschool but they
offer family advocates that also help with the low income, and not just low income, I'm
sorry, but beyond every day things. I'm not sure if I'm explaining it right but they have
family advocates that go out and help with whatever the family needs - resources or what
have you. It's not just a preschool where you can just drop off your kids.
The funding - they don't have to pay lunches. They always have hot lunches. My wife
and I we are homeowners, we're a young family. Without MEO Head Start I don't know
if we would be here today. I mean, not be here today but be where we're at. I thank you
for your time, and you guys got a hard job. Mahalo.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. If you can state your name for the record, bruddah.
MR. LEE: Ikaika Lee.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ikaika. Members, any questions for our three testifers? And we
want to make sure that both of you also put your name on top of the sign up sheet. Thank
you very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, Linda Farrell and Jim Buika.
MS. FARRELL: Hello and welcome, and thank you for being here. My name is Linda Farrell.
I'm no relation to Sharon Farrell of Ka Lima 0 Maui although we're speaking about the
same subject. Tonight might be known as the night of potty talk since we have lots of
people expressing concern about the restrooms. And I think Ka Lima 0 Maui has done
what they can with what they have. My understanding is that the way that the bathrooms
are currently cleaned is just with the hose in the morning. There's no cleaning chemicals.
We don't have soap in the bathrooms and it's just a once a day thing.
When I asked the Mayor when he came to the KCA meeting why there was so little
money being spent on our South Maui parks since they are so precious to us and to the
tourists that visit Maui, he said it was because we're slobs down here in South Maui.
And that he can't outlaw that. That he can't make a rule or pay enough money to fix that
problem. But I don't think that is the reason, and he said that he wanted to respectfully
disagree with me when I said that I thought that the parks and particularly the restrooms
were under-maintained and funded. And I'd just like to respectfully disagree with the
Mayor and say that I don't think that cleaning the restrooms once a day when there's a
thousand users is because they're not clean because we're slobs. It's because that's just
not enough cleaning. And it was suggested that maybe they could clean it throughout the
day. I think in West Maui, that's what they do with the public restrooms is that they just
keep coming back and cleaning them and they use some cleaning solution. And it was
recommended that possibly they could put that cleaning solution in at night before they
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lock the restrooms so it can sit in the facility and then be rinsed down in the morning and
that there would just be ongoing cleaning. I'm glad that it's in the budget. Michelle
Anderson mentioned that they're trying to have three people that will be taking care of
the parks, and I just want to make sure that it stays in the budget as a priority because it
really is sad and we're not just griping. It really ... it just ... it doesn't reflect well on us
as a community, and it doesn't really show us much respect that we're not important
enough to have something as basic as restroom facilities open and clean. So I think it's
just a job that's going to need to be paid for. I don't think we can ask for just the very
minimum and squeak by any more with what we've got now. It was a solution at a time
when I've heard that there were other reasons why we had to have that way of taking care
of the restrooms but I think it's time to fund that and take care of our parks. So that is my
... all I have to say.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Farrell. Members, any questions? Hearing none. Thank you
for your testimony.
MS. FARRELL: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WlLLENBRINK: Jim Buika and then Joy Visitacion.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: She left.
MS. WILLENBRINK: She left?
MR. BUlKA: Good evening, Council members. My name is Jim Buika. I am a Manager with
the Pacific Disaster Center here in our High-Tech Park and I'd like to thank you for
coming to Kihei and also thank you for supporting MEDB. And I'd like to testify in
continued support of MEDB. They are a vital link for our organization and many, many
other organizations back with the community and especially with the school programs
here in Maui. Part of our mission takes us to Hawaii, it takes us to other Pacific Islands
and also to Asia, Southeast Asia so we often get distracted but all of our work here is
based here in Hawaii. And what MEDB provides for us is just a vital link back to the
community here. And I've listed 13 different programs, projects, activities that because
of MEDB we give back to the community, and you can extrapolate from our one
organization that's very, very busy to many, many other ones and kind of look at the
cumulative effect of MEDB. But as an example, some of the projects that we've done
two projects just this month with Kamehameha Schools Maui, we were involved with the
EAST Program. They introduced us to the Akimeka Maui Digital Bus, we do programs
with them now. We participate in their EXCITE Camp and their Women in
Technologies Program, the Tech Career Days at the Park. We had some summer interim
programS for the akamai interns and we participate in the annual High-Tech Job Fair,
Holiday Job Fair, where we have, had many applicants come through and some be hired.
And on the business side, we are able through MEDB to network with the Tech ohana.
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Here we participated at their invite to the Mayor's Economic Summit and we've had an
afternoon with the Economic Development Alliance of Hawaii because of MEDB. And
they also promote us nationally on the mainland and they'll be doing that next week.
And they've also encouraged us to publish articles and get some of our work out there in
the High Tech Maui newsletter that they have. So they have been vital to us and they
continue to help us and other organizations interact especially with the school kids and its
great to get them involved and to see the High Tech opportunities here, here in Maui
which is growing in leaps and bounds. And so from all this type of activity, I really
encourage you to continue supporting MEDB as an excellent vital program for Maui
here. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, questions for our testifier? Seeing none. Thank you for
being here this evening.
MR. BUlKA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Cheryl Zarro. Is Cheryl here ... followed by Peggy Temple.
MS. ZARRO: Good evening. Thank you for coming. I'm Cheryl Zarro. I'm involved with the
Charter High School here in Kihei and also at Lokelani Intermediate as a PCNC. A lot of
what I've heard tonight is really connected to our students and teaching civic
responsibility and service learning. And I know that a lot of the issues that came up is
something that the students are actually a resource, and I know a lot oftimes when people
come to the budget meeting they're only talking dollars. Buck talked about it in the
playground and how that was built back 15 years ago. And I want to stress that if you
don't support organizations that help develop those relationships and if the County can't
do more to have some comprehensive planning with either the DOE, BOE, the Feds., you
know, when we sit down and we look at our community and actually make a strong plan
and get the input from the youth and develop what it is that we're going to be doing with
the funds. It's my understanding, I just asked John Buck about it, I hope I don't put him
on the spot, but the gymnasium I understand is off of the budget for this year. I haven't
had an opportunity to look at each item and see where the money is being allocated but
it's sad that South Maui is not getting facilities for the youth. You had a couple kids
sitting out here. I said, why don't you guys come in and testify, you know. They said,
what exactly is that? What's going on inside? I said, it's a Budget meeting where the
County spend their money on things like the skate park. They said, we really have a say?
I said, well, is there anything you want? They said, well, what about a water park? It's
hot in Kihei and we don't have much to do here. The kids really do need something.
They need more than what they're getting. If they can't get the sports equipment, if
they're not getting the gym, then what about the sports equipment or the things that are
going to be supported in the programs, like the Youth Center and that type of thing.

-40 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

March 28, 2006 (Kihei)

I'm mostly here to support MEDB in their efforts in doing what they have for education.
With Focus Maui Nui they've found that education was one of the things that those
thousands of people that sat down in small focus groups decided that it was really
important. If you're not educating our youth and you're not teaching them civic
responsibility, it doesn't matter how many dollars or tax dollars you fix the parks up, you
know, the crime rate is going to go up, the drug use is going to go up, nobody is going to
care about the environment because they don't even understand the impact of it. So, I
know, personally, from my daughter she went to the Engineers Day and that was through
MEDB. There was an engineering course she could take in the evening. Again, with the
support of MEDB -MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. ZARRO: --Women in Technology. I should probably look at my notes because I'm sure I
have more that I wanted to let you know. The Kalama Park Action Team has done a lot
to help Kalama Park. And again, it goes back to the youth. If they can't get in there and
help you build the park back and build the skateboard park back, they're not going to
own it. They're not going to care and then it's going to be the kids are done and seen it
and, oh, now we have to pay all this money and we'll close it back down. Last year I
know my two children came up and talked about getting the skate park back on track. I
didn't really expect them to tum into skateboarders. But that's okay, that's what they
want to do and that's where the help is needed. Through service learning, we could
develop something through tourism with service learning in our schools and the teachers,
and if the County could support that kind of effort using organizations and
partnershipping and building those relationships.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Four minutes.
MS. ZARRO: So, I thank you. Anyway, that's it.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Zarro. Members, any questions for Ms. Zarro? Hearing none.
Thank you very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Yes, Peggy Temple and then Gene Zarro.
MS. TEMPLE: Good evening. I'm here to support MEDB and also to thank you as well for all
of the support you've given us. My name is Peggy Temple. I teach 7th grade math and
8th grade engineering at Lokelani Intennediate School. And it's because of MEDB that
we have so many programs in session right now. I usually bring the students here but
they're on Spring break and they want nothing to do with me this week so I had to come
myself.
First thing, we do have an engineering course at Lokelani. It's the first 8th grade
engineering course in our State, and we offer it to you. Students who are interested in
pursuing engineering and science technology degrees in the future. MEDB helps us get
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speakers, they help us get support for the materials that we need in the engineering class
as we go through design, electrical, mechanical, civil and computer engineering. They
help us with all of that. And then they sponsored a trip to Oahu for my students, and in
Oahu we went to the University of Hawaii College of Engineering. The whole State went
to participate. Every island was represented and there were four contests. Out of the four
students, our students from Maui took second place in motor design, electrical motors
and a third place in pendulums, which is pretty good for only 1s t, 2nd, 3rd and fourth
categories.
Secondly, we also started this year the Hawaii Science Local Engineering Fair, Science
and Engineering Fair. No longer the students get picked by their teachers to go to
districts. They actually have to compete. And we did this in conjunction with Maui
Waena and Lokelani. Next year, we hope to have Kalama as well with us to get more
students involved. We had over 150 students with the two schools represented. MEDB
got us engineering judges to truly judge the projects as well as science and math judges.
We sent 30 students to district; 16 received honorable mentions; 2 next Monday will be
representing us at the States and they're engineering students. Two nominees for the
Discovery Channel Young Scientists Award and one large award from the International
Optical Association happened at the fair.
We also participated in Girls Engineering Day from MEDB the Women in Technology
who sponsors the program where they follow an engineer all day long and truly it turns
on so many young women to the engineering field.
And last but not least, we're going for the world record for Pi day. Pi, which is 3.14
which is March 14th. We had to break a record of 10,480 links and we went and we
broke it by 21,680. So we're still waiting from the World School of Records to see if we
broke the world record, but MEDB actually was our official judges. So not only do they
everything else but support us but they stayed there the whole day counting pi links and
made sure everything was linked together. So there are always there to support our
students. And although the State is supposed to fund us, and I'm saying a big suppose to,
it's the community that has taken care of us and really help us succeed in all these
projects. And I want to thank you and thank the MEDB. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you for your testimony. Members, questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Hi, good evening.
MS. TEMPLE: Hi.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It's very intriguing - an 8th grade engineering class. Wow,
how the times have changed. Can you just briefly tell me what the criteria is for the
students to qualify for this class? I presume it's an elective and
MS. TEMPLE: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --have you had to tum away students?
MS. TEMPLE: Yes. It is an elective and because I am also a 7th grade math teacher I only have
to teach it one semester because that's the only funding we had. And we would do it at
night time so that I could teach my regular classes during the day. So in order to be
considered to take the course, they had to compete in the Science Fair as well as show
interest by writing some kind of testimony for their science abilities and what they would
like to do. The course is not just open to your very best students. We have everybody
participating, wants to participate and we have some very low students who actually tum
out to be wonderful engineers. So it gives the opportunity to as many students as
possible. Unfortunately, it's only about 25 students.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good. Keep up the good work.
MS. TEMPLE: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Nobody wants to show their Ignorance so I've been
designated to ask the question. What is a Pi link?
MS. TEMPLE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And how do you get whatever 100,000 that you did?
MS. TEMPLE: Very tediously. But Pi, the 3.14 Pi, is an indefinite number so it goes on and on.
So each number from one to zero, through zero, has a color. And then as it goes 3.14597
however it goes, every time a color comes up, every time that number comes up you
chain the link so that you actually have the chain of Pi. It went around our school
cafeteria five times. So the students got to see what Pi looked like and how large it is and
we still don't get anywhere near it. So our whole school did this and we competed from
9:30 to 1:15, which is the hours that you can compete, and every single class had pieces
of Pi. And so we put all the pieces together and that's what Jenny Gaskin was the one
who had to actually see that the pieces actually went consecutively so that we had the Pi.
And at the end of the day we ate pie, real pie. So Monday evening on the 13th of March,
Kihei had no pies in any of the food stores.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is the display still up?
MS. TEMPLE: No, it's not. It's in bags because we didn't want anything to happen to it
because if they come back to us and want to see it, I need to have it prepared. So we
have seven large green garbage bags full of Pi.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
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MS. TEMPLE: You're welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? You tweaked the educators on the body
with your comments so thank you. Twenty-two sevenths. Yes.
MS. TEMPLE: Very good. But 3.14 is easier.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, exactly.
MS. TEMPLE: Thank you so much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Mahina Martin and then Phill Schmidt.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Zarro, you're up and then Ms. Martin.
MS. MARTIN: Okay.
MR. ZARRO: Good evening, everybody. It's great to see all of you here on such a wonderful
evening but thank you for coming. Initially, I wrote on my thing that I was just going to
speak as an individual but I do want to speak as one of your commissioners on
Commission for Child and Youth, which I've been on for four years. And just remind
you what we feel are our three important priorities for this Commission. And one, of
course, is the continued funding of the Early Childhood Education programs. And then
the other two, of course, are affordable housing and homelessness.
On our Commission, we know that this a serious problem but we look at it through the
eyes of the child and what is affordable housing and how is it affecting or impacting
negatively the child. And the same thing with the homelessness. So as you go through
your deliberations on trying to solve these problems, if it helps, think about the child
involved because besides the parents, the child needs to be taken care of. So from the
Commission standpoint, that is an important priority, set of priorities I'd like to convey to
you.
The next thing I'd like to do is let you know that I'm in strong support of MEa and we
have a school bus now at the Charter school and that is because after MEa puts their
250,000 miles on it and they're ready to pass it along non-profits can actually seek these
donations so they, as a non-profit, can donate to other non-profits. So we were fortunate
enough to get a nice IS-passenger school bus. So MEa does many, many things but they
actually can help us by transferring assets as well as all the services.
One of the other things I'd like to talk about is Focus Maui Nui. We've all come to rely
on the findings of this great document that went out to so many people and they went to
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great lengths to try and get people involved that are not normally involved in these types
of meetings. But one of the strongest things that came out of that was education as the
top priority in this County ... your constituencies. And education is where you'll find it.
It's everywhere. But sometimes you have to get down to brass tacks and the people that
helped us educate children, people like MEDB who do so much to support our programs
they really come out and they are there before we even ask. And they kind of help us put
the icing on the cake in the form of providing opportunities for internships and
mentorships and those types of things. These are really important things for children to
get away from the school and realize that education is still taking place. One of the
documents I've had a chance to recently review was the - it was a State Task Force
document on workforce development. It was done about 3 or 4 years ago. And if there's
any organization in this County that is working towards that goal in trying to develop a
workforce that is ready for the 21st Century, it's MEDB. They are out there and they are
integrating their energies with the 21st Century thinking. Now that doesn't mean that
everything is technology. It's education where you find it, when you find it. You gotta
be ready for it. These people are ready for it and they help people who are ready to have
it. And I want to ask you to keep supporting that organization MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. ZARRO: --to the best that you can. The last thing I want to say and I'm going to take this
from David Frazier, I really didn't realize there were like 13 beaches in South Maui. So
think of it as a strand of pearls that need to be taken care of. And they wrap around this
community and we need to take good care of our assets. So thank you very much for
your time. Good evening.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Zarro. If you can state your name for the record please, Mr.
Zarro?
MR. ZARRO: And I've got a last comment. My name is Gene Zarro.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. ZARRO: And I want to give you a math number. If you do the math based on the
population of students in South Maui, you will come to a very good estimate that there
are 300 children for every age. So if you go from 0 to 17, there are 5100 active youths in
this community. That's a good educated guess.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Zarro? Hearing none. Thank you
very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Mahina and then Phill Schmidt.
MR. MARTIN: Aloha. Hi. I've never seen you in Kihei. I had to follow you tonight. I don't
have time on the other evenings. But I'm here for four issues. And I want to thank you
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again for your time in the committee meetings because I do know it takes up a good
portion of the work. One involves youth, the other native plants and the other Moku 'ula.
So they're kind of all over the board.
In the areas of youth, your support in Kihei Youth Center ... (change tape) ... the funds
that they're using as a non-profit to pay for the electricity and maintenance of County
restrooms or supplying restrooms in lieu of that would provide for their funding to go
through program rather than other facility needs.
The other thing is the MEO Youth transportation. On behalf of Hawaiian Canoe Club we
use MEO actively and as you probably know by now we have so much of our
disadvantaged youth benefiting from it and they do pick up the students from school and
then they come to the hale and they are able to participate in our athletic program and our
cultural programs. And many of them have made use of it even outside of the summer
season. For instance, right now we have a delegation of 60 Hawaiian Canoe Club keiki
and adult paddlers, coaches and parents in Aotearoa competing in New Zealand for the,
in the world sprints with other nations from Fiji, Caledonia, Tahiti, Australia and others.
So we make good use ofMEO. So I appreciate that kind of support.
And as far as native plants go, I want to preface by saying that I am the absolute last
person to be near a plant because I don't have the gift in the garden. But I have actually
gone to Maui Nui Botannical Gardens and made their great use of their tapa dyeing class.
And I brought what I made ... myown show and tell. And we went to Maui Nui
Botannical Gardens or I went as part of a class and actually learned to use native plants
and, you know, blended them and dyed them. And what we did was we dyed muslin to
make our own kihe. So we used everything from olena to noni, we've used hau, the
hibiscus plant, you know the native ones, we've used the uki uki berry, mamaki and kalo.
These are three that are dyed straight from native plants from their garden and we spent a
whole day learning how. So that was something that ordinarily I wouldn't have found
my way but I found it so fascinating. And my husband is a student of La' au lapa' au now
and he has gone there and used the resources and their staff has been tremendously
helpful. And just as a central resource for native plants, it's been outstanding to go to
them. And again, you know, that's a new role for me so
kind oflearning that.
As far as Moku 'ula goes, as you know, I have been affiliated with the Friends of
Moku 'ula for a number of years and I do know that there will probably me over in
Lahaina, I just couldn't make that one, and they have I understand secured funding from
the Feds., from the federal government for wetland restoration as they move forward into
the next phase for them. And with regards to that, would require because of some new
law some County support and matching funds and I'm sure they will be better equipped
than I am to answer the stages of their project right now. But they continue to move
forward. I've been there as recent as few weeks ago and they're really happy that they're
moving into the next phase and a few more down the road in their planning. So I
appreciate that and as you gear up for West Maui maybe they can answer your questions.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Martin. Members, any questions?
MS. MARTIN: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing none. Thank you very much.
MS. MARTIN: Okay, thank you. Aloha.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Phill Schmidt and then we have Jonathan Miller signed up as our last
testifier.
MR. SCHMIDT: Good evening. Phill Schmidt. I'm the Technology Coordinator at the Kihei
Charter School. I'm just here to express my deep appreciation for the, for your support
with MEDB. I just recently took a delegation ofthree of our students to the mainland for
a technology conference where we competed with over 2,000 other students from over
500 schools and we came up with their top award ... let's see what was the name of it
a superior school rating that we got from them and it's all to do with some of the
technology that we've been able to purchase through you guys' support through MEDB
and through the Women in Technology. I really appreciate it.
We tried to use the technology at the school to focus on community problems and use our
technology and our kids' innovativeness and their expertise to solve some of the
community problems. We're working closer with the Police Department to identify areas
in the community where people get sometimes stranded so we're using GPS devices that
you helped us purchase. We're also working with the Department of Land and Natural
Resources in checking some of our seashore areas and watching for erosion and things
like that. So it's been just a great thing for all our kids in the school. They all get a
chance to participate in the EAST Program.
EAST is the program that we went there on and that is Environmental and Spatial
Technologies. And it's just a great way ... also MEDB is also showing our teachers here
in the community not just at our school cause I do work with the other schools and the
other high schools on Maui, showing us that there are opportunities for our kids right
here, high tech opportunities. I think a lot of teachers were not so aware of so they're
bringing that awareness to the students. They're going to keep some of these great
students here on Maui because they understand that there are opportunities for them here
in technology. So we just want to show our appreciation. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, sir, for your testimony. Members, any questions? Hearing none.
Thank you very much. Ms. Willenbrink.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Jonathan Miller.
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MR. MILLER: My name is John Miller and I'm on the Board of the Kihei Community
Association. And before I begin, I have a handout for all of you. As you can see, we
took a look at our tax revenue especially at your capital improvement program compared
to your tax revenue and capital improvement program expenditures. If you look at the
first page, you'll see that we averaged out from 2004 to 2007 what kind of capital
improvement program monies is allocated in each district. If you take a look at this,
you'll see that the largest goes to Wailuku and Kahului at 32 percent. We're going to
pass by Molokai, Hana, West Maui you get down to 8 percent, which is where Kihei and
Makena come in. And the only district receiving less, the smaller proportionate capital
improvement budget is the island of Lanai. Flip the page.
Examine a little bit closer . . . so I looked at our 2004 - 2007 budget much more
specifically. And if you look at 2004, first you'll see it looks like we had 18 percent for
capital improvement program. But if you analyze it a little bit further down, okay, you're
going to realize that about ... the majority of that funding is actually coming for the
North-South Collector Road. And half of that funding was through Federal grant money.
So, realistically, in 2004 we're looking at more about a 2 percent for capital
improvements program. Flip to the next page.
It's 2005, we're at 4 percent. 2006 again Kihei-Makena - 4 percent. And now we get to
2007. At first look 2007 we're looking at 9 percent, but again you can take a deeper look
into these numbers and you can see that if you move the EP A Consent Decree for sewer
rehabilitation funds, Kihei-Makena is back down to 4 percent. So, on the next page is
where things start to get really interesting is where you examine property tax revenue.
And what you're going to see is Kihei-Makena is donating 30 percent of the County's
property tax revenue. So this is your cash cal. And if you follow the next page, you're
going to see I documented where I was looking at Kihei-Makena and the maroon is
property tax revenue and the lavender is going to be your capital improvement
expenditures. And if you look closely at Kihei, you're going to see accessory grades and
equity lines. We have this huge property tax revenue accompanying with this miniscule
expenditure for capital improvements. And I think it's real important to look at the big
picture here. And that is that, Kihei and South Maui is the cash cal. for this island. And
the reason people want to be here is because it's a nice place to be. But if you're not
going to reinvest in this community, you're not going to put money in cleaning up poorly
maintained parks, inadequate walking and bicycling, worn out roadways, traffic, and
poorly maintained beaches, people are going to find other places to vacation. And that's
not only going to be a disservice to the people who live here in South Maui. That's going
to be a disservice to the entire island that relies on this tax revenue. Thank you,
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any questions for our testifier? Hearing none. Thank
you very much.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I have a question.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson. Sorry about that.
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MR. MILLER: No problem.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, John, for providing this which I will have to
defendMR. MILLER: Feel free.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --in the next few weeks. So I want to ask you, you know, I
can appreciate taking out large CIP projects that are to be done over many years.
MR. MILLER: Right ... were coming from County funds, Federal funds and alike.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When you took out the Consent Decree, sir, rehab funds,
did you notice where the money was from?
MR. MILLER: EPA.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, EPA doesn't give us money.
MR. MILLER: Right. Well, you know, Michelle, I do and the reason I took those out and
actually when I put together the initial presentation here in the CIP budget, we're still at 8
percent. Okay. And I was just taking out those budgets and I wasn't trying to determine
whether they were coming from County. I mean, if you look at 2007, you're also going
to see the example of, you know, almost all the monies we get from Parks is from parks
assessment fees. I was taking out those large chunks to get a realistic look at what our
budget looked like. And although North-South Collector Road in 2004 we're looking at
$3.4 million was coming from the County. The reason I removed that was not to say that
the County was not giving us that money but to say let's look at what's really going to
parks, roads, police forces.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right, I understand. I'm just trying to find out if you could
back this up with some of the data that you used. In other words, when you reduced the
CIP to Kihei by taking out the Consent Decree repair work for the sewer, did you look at
those large type of projects for like West Maui?
MR. MILLER: Well, as you see, I didn't take apart large types of projects and the real issue is,
even if you were to not look at those numbers, okay, if you look at your opening graph,
which is on Page 2, that puts us at 8 percent that's still an horrendous figure when you
consider where the population base is and how much tax revenues coming in, how many
tourists we have and the requirements that we need to keep this cash cal. going to keep
funding other districts.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, you don't have to sell me, John. I think I brought
these figures to you guys. I'm just trying to get a better handle on, you know, if you're
going to reduce something that has to be equitable across the board otherwise ...
MR. MILLER: Right. And the only issue here is taking out the specific numbers is because the
North-South Collector Road was a large budget item and it may be 18 percent. And I feel
that it made it look somewhat inflated, we look at it realistically the money going to our
parks and other capital improvements, walkways, you know bikeways is very small to
what other districts are receiving. When we compare that to our tax revenue, what we
have coming in, that inequity is just gargantuan.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, I very much appreciate this, John. Thank you.
MR. MILLER: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Hearing none. Thank you for your
testimony. Is there anybody here who has not testified that would like to testify? Now is
your opportunity to come forward. Seeing nobody approach .

.. .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: We want to thank you all for allowing us to come and hear your thoughts.
We're going to be meeting in Lahaina tomorrow evening. If you have any friends or
associates that would like to engage themselves in this process, we encourage you to do
so. We will also be meeting this week - tomorrow and Thursday in the Council
Chambers where we will be hearing the Administration and their departments having our
daily discussions regarding the whole budget. You can see that live on Akaku every
morning starting at 9 o'clock and ending at about 3:30. So, please, we invite you to again
engage yourself. So thank you very much from all of us to all of you. This meeting here
in South Maui is adjourned. . .. (gavel) . ..

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

ADJOURN:

DEFER pending further discussion.

8:32 p.m.

- 50-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council ofthe County of Maui

March 28, 2006 (Kihei)

APPROVED:

Transcribed by: Jo-Ann Sato

bf:min:060328-2

- 51 -

